
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY OCTOBER 3, 2023 
 
6:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. Representative Kristin Robbins (House District 37A) – Annual Legislative Update. 

 
5. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.  
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the September 6, 2023, City Council Special 
Meeting and Workshop. 

b. Approval of City Council Minutes from the September 19, 2023, Regular City 
Council Meeting. 

c. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 22318-22326) 
 

6. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

7. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
8. Consider Approval of Citywide Recycling Contract Award: 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 23-1003-01 – Awarding approval of the City’s Recycling 
Contract. 

 
9. Open/Misc. 

 
10. Adjourn. 

 
 
 

Note: The City Council will be attending two (2) ribbon cuttings starting at 5:30 PM at Koch’s Sanctuary Farm 
Subdivision and then following at BridgeVine Subdivision.  Please contact City Hall for additional information and 
exact meeting locations. 



  

1 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. September 6, 2023 
 

MINUTES OF A WORK SESSION OF THE 
INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

WEDSDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2023 – 7:00 AM. 
(City Hall Community Room) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER. 
 
Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a work session of the Independence City Council was called to order 
by Mayor Johnson at 7:00 a.m. 
 
 
2.  ROLL CALL  
 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Spencer, Betts, McCoy and Grotting (arrived after consent 

agenda)  
ABSENT: None 
STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Administrative Services Director Simon, Public Works Supervisor 

Bode 
VISITORS: WHPS Chief Kroells, Sergeant Denneson 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the July 27, 2023, City Council Workshop. 
b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 22195-22207) 

 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by Betts to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, 
McCoy and Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: Grotting. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED 
CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. 2024 Draft Budget Discussion 
 

 
a. City Budget and General Tax Levy 
b. WHPS Budget 
c. Fire Budgets 

 
Kaltsas explained that the city is trying to reduce our overall tax rate from 33% down to 31%. He said the city 
is showing a reduction year over year. Fire was dialed in a little differently than previous years. There is a 
reduction in full Delano budge from last year since the city will be ending their contract with Delano Fire 
Dept and will increase the budget with West Suburban Fire and Maple Plain Fire Dept by $15-20k. These are 
two pieces we need to lock down.  
 



  

2 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. September 6, 2023 
 

Johnson asked about a small cities fund.  
Kaltsas said we don’t include it as a revenue source, but if we for sure will get it, then we can.  
Johnson said he thought it was going to be around $60k.  
 
Kaltsas talked about the recycling contract. Curbside was way outside of budget, but Waste Management was 
very reasonable. It is for a 3 year contract however, WM doesn’t think they can match our Friday pickups.  
Kaltsas also discussed that there is a capital equipment one-time increase from $75k to $113k and COL 
increase by 3%. Health insurance is going up by over 8%.  
Kaltsas explained that there is $25k in soft cost to do some work on Pioneer Park and the City wants to go 
after a grant this Fall for the park. There is also a placeholder of $15k for legal fees. He has a meeting with the 
criminal city attorney to talk through some of the costs to go after some nuisance properties. Election numbers 
have gone way up next year due to two elections and a lot more staffing which impacts cost of food and 
wages. He explained that it costs $25-30k to do an election so this does not include that. He said he shows an 
increase in pay as well. The road improvement plan went from $52k to $60k for each item.  
 
Johnson pointed out that there is nothing down for a couple of years for maintenance on buildings. He 
recommended adding a little each year.  
Kaltsas agreed. He said he wants to do a capital plan for siding, flooring, painting and go through to set up a 
longer range and how to fund that.  
 
Steve McDonald from ABDO explained that there was an overall increase is about $209k. The total levy with 
debt in there is still going down even with the tax rate. Hennepin County average was about 7%. A few years 
ago our target was 40% and with the valuation increases it now 31.5%.  
Kaltsas explained that the city has had an increase in our general revenue and an increase in licenses and 
permits due to the new developments in the city. The city is at $425k and the budget was only at $265k. He 
said he doesn’t see this slowing down until the developments are completed. He said that he wants to work on 
tweaking the budget a little bit more with Steve McDonald. There is a 1.5 ton truck in PW that he wants to put 
in the budget because the city put a lot of money in it. There isn’t as much time left in it as it seems like.  
 
Betts asked if all the striping is done on the roads such as Becker and Providence.  
Kaltsas said there hasn’t been striping historically there and Providence was opposed to having striping.  
Betts said it is very difficult to see for some people and she didn’t understand that but now that she has 
glaucoma, she sees how it’s a safety issue.  
Kroells said there hasn’t been any issues with those roads in the past.  
 
 
 

7. Fire District Update 
 
Kaltsas talked about his meeting with West Suburban and Maple Plain Fire. There was discussion about the 
district. Jeff Leuer talked us through what it might look like to join that district. There are a lot of moving 
pieces. HC was able to provide estimated market value for the split showing the two pieces without Delano. 
They will get us numbers and what that will cost Independence and Maple Plain. We will then have a better 
idea of what that will look like for Independence residents and what that would be equivalent to if it was  
taxing district versus a contracted amount. ABDO has done some preliminary work on that and have them run 
the cost of fire today vs. fire in a district model. MP would like to have a joint workshop meeting with both 
councils to talk about where fire services are at.  
 
 



  

3 
City of Independence 
City Council Work Session Minutes 
7:00 a.m. September 6, 2023 
 

8. Consider Authorization to Complete Paving of City Hall/WHPS Garage Parking Lot.  
 

a. The City has bid out paving the area in front of the WHPS garage in accordance with the 
overall site plan.  The City received three (3) bids and would like to award the contract to the 
lowest bidder. 

 
 
Kaltsas said the city has been searching for bids to finish the asphalt in our parking lot. He was thinking that 
the cost would go down last fall but that’s not the case. The city received 3 bids. We thought it was $15-20k, 
but its almost double that. It is the last thing we have to finish off the parking lot. We talked about this island 
– let’s rip it out. The drainage can be cleaded up and pave around the new gaerage. There is some standing 
water in some areas during rain events. The city asked DMJ to bid additional work for drainage for and 
additional $7,980. The city will take it out of our street reconstruction or covid ARPA money that is left over. 
This is a full 5” pavement.  
 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Grotting to approve the bid to DMJ for the base bid plus 
additional work of $7,980. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, Grotting and Spencer. Nays: None. 
Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5-0 

 
  
 

a. Adjourn 
 

 
Motion by Betts, seconded by Grotting to adjourn. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy Grotting and 
Spencer. Nays: None. Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 5-0 

 
The Workshop adjourned at 8:17 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Respectfully Submitted, 
Amber Simon/ Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES          
TUESDAY SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 
 
6:30 PM REGULAR MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Council members Spencer, Grotting, McCoy 
STAFF:  Mark Kaltsas, Amber Simon, Gary Kroells 
ABSENT: Council member Lynn Betts 
VISITORS: John Dialing (See Sign in sheet) 
 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.  
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the August 29, 2023, Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable (Batch # 1; Checks Numbered 22283-22295, Batch # 
2; Checks Numbered 22296-22315). 

c. Approve Annual Contribution to Delano Senior Center for Services Provided to 
Independence Residents.  
 

Motion by Spencer, seconded by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: 
Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. None.  
MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 
Grotting attended the following meetings: 
• Planning Commission 
• Workshop 

 
Spencer attended the following meetings: 
• City workshop 
• MP Fire/WHPS softball game 
• Hwy 12 Safety Coalition Meeting 

 
McCoy attended the following meetings: 
• MP Fire/WHPS softball game 



 

• Hwy 12 Safety Coalition 
• Workshop 
• Fire Commission 
• Vietnam Veterans dedication 

 
Johnson attended the following meetings:  
• Planning Commission Meeting 
• MetCouncil Policy Committee Meeting 
• Funeral – McCauly  
• Northwest Trails Annual Appreciation Dinner 
• Budget Workshop 
• Hwy 12 Corridor Coalition Meeting 
• MP Fire/WHPS softball game 
• Mayors Breakfast Maple Grove 
• Vietnam Veterans dedication 
• Waffle Breakfast Delano Senior Center 
• Funeral- Gov Quie’s 
• Regional Council of Mayor’s Meeting 
• MP Fire Department Meeting 
• Small Cities Council Zoom Meeting 
• Energy Environment of Natural Resources for NLC – Zoom Meeting 
• Northwest League 
• League of MN Cities 

 
Simon attended the following meetings:  
• Budget Workshop 

 
7. West Hennepin Public Safety Monthly Report for September 2023 – Chief Gary Kroells. 

August 2759 Total Incident Complaints 
• 233 in Independence 
• 123 in Maple Plain 

See full police report 
 
8. Consider Approval of the 2024 Preliminary Budget and Tax Levy: 

Kaltsas – kept the same budget and dialed in a few numbers on fire services. We are 
proposing a budget that represents a reduction in overall tax rate by an additional 2%. This is 
the second year in a row the city has been able to reduce the tax rate. We can do that because 
market value continues to rise about 10% year over year. Increase total operating levy by 
about 5.5%. Major increases are inflationary – health insurance, payroll, liability insurance 
and things that go along with inflationary pressures. We still can reduce or hold flat. What 
that means to a resident – if you have a flat valuation, you will see a decrease in your taxes 
on the city side. A city only makes up about 30% of total tax. Budget has changes in fire and 
WHPS budget included. It has the city’s capital improvement for equipment for Public 
Works. Includes Pioneer Sarah Creek management organization’s annual levy. This goes to 
residents in that district. If you are in Minnehaha – you pay directly to the district.  
 



 

 
This is a prelim levy. We can go lower by December but cannot go higher. A few things will 
be tweaked like delinquent utilities.  
Johnson – did you ever find out if that road fund got approved with legislature. 
Kaltsas – it did get approved but don’t know the amount. It was a biannual approval. It’s 
about $20m this year and under $18m last year. We can potentially use that amount to 
decrease our levy. We have been conservative on capturing the dollars in the budget if we 
can maintain a certain level of new building permits.  

 
A. RESOLUTION NO. 23-0919-01 – Establishing the General and Debt Service 

Preliminary Tax Levy and Setting a Date for the 2023 Truth in Taxation Meeting for 
December 5, 2023, at 6:00 PM. 

 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by Grotting to establishing the General and Debt 
Service Preliminary Tax Levy and setting the date for the 2023 Truth in Taxation 
Meeging. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: 
Betts. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 

B. RESOLUTION NO. 23-0919-02 – Establishing the Pioneer Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Commission Preliminary Tax Levy. 

 
Motion by Spencer, seconded by Johnson establishing the Pioneer Sarah Creek 
Watershed Management Commission Prilimary Tax Levey. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. None.  MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
      Spencer – note from Joe Baker – make sure we are aware that the budget will remain  
      unchanged for 5 years, including this year.  
  

 
9. Jon Dailing/Windsong Farm Golf Club (Applicant) and David Meyer (Owner) are 

requesting the following action for the properties generally located at 18 Golf Walk and 
550 CSAH 92 N. (PID No.s 32-118- 24-13-0001, 32-118-24-42-0001, 32-118-24-24-
0001, 32-118-24-31-0002, 32-118-24-42-0030, 32-118-24-43-0002, 32-118-24-42-0031, 
32-118-24-42-0029, 32-118-24-42-0025, 32-118-24-42-0036, 32-118-24-34-0001 and 
32-118-24-31-0001) in the City of Independence, MN: 

 
Kaltsas – request to amend CUP in AG district to expand club house, locker room and 
proshop. Guided public, semipublic. Has had CUP for a long time. They have expanded 
the CUP several times. They have a series of projects – renovation work to pro shop and 
locker room and now club house. They have 3 buildings located in the main campus. 
They would like to combine pro shop and locker rooms and expand locker rooms 
considerably to be able to accommodate current membership. There are many members 
without lockers and have been for some time. Also allows for a modest expansion.  Their 
membership cap is set already and there will not be adjustments to that. Double the space. 
The additional space is to clean up the areas and providing a better wine room and whole 
new bathroom. Public Hearing was held, planning commissioners just asked about the 



 

membership piece and if it opens it up for further expansion. The additional space has 
been needed for some years to help with their current members. There are no events, etc 
that will be happening. Improvements really support current membership. Septic would 
need to be reviewed from building inspector. It is part of the building permit process.  No 
trails or roads are being impacted. No changes to infrastructure or facilities.  Changes will 
happen within the footprint of the existing complex as you come into main courtyard of 
the club. 
Grotting – I remember talking about Lyndale septic system – when you have a system of 
that size, is there any issue with a septic size that big having an issue here.  
Kaltsas – They have similar issues, but this is all private and they must meet the state 
guideline and requirements. Lyndale served a bar. Windsong has a private system, and 
they have land.  

  
a. RESOLUTION NO. 23-0919-05 – Considering approval of a conditional use 

permit amendment to allow the modification and expansion of the main club 
house building associated with the golf course. 

 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Grotting to approve of a conditional use permit 
amendment to allow modification and expansion of the main club house building 
associated with the golf course. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. 
Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 

10. Consider Final Adoption of the 2040 Comprehensive Plan Following Approval by the 
Metropolitan Council: 

Kaltsas – started process in 2017 to start this amendment. Submitted plan to Met council 
in 2018. Resubmitted in 2019 and until May 2023 we worked with Met council on a 
couple of key points. The 2040 plan is based on the land use planning act requirement 
that the Met council has authority over. We have to adopt and update every 10 years. 5 
years after our 2010 plan, Met council sends out system statements for their best guess on 
how much the region is going to grow. Each community shows how many households 
and population of growth and what you must accommodate by the next submission. 
Independence sent back a letter saying we don’t agree. We could grow more to maintain 
flexibility with other factors. We negotiated for the last 4 years with your calculation. We 
established sewer to 250 residents. Met council said Lindgren can connect to sewer but 
you have to offset the density of that connection to compensate for that somewhere else 
in the city to make up for that. The bailout should not count toward the city. Met council 
finally agreed. They erased our slate and said we can start over without Lindgren lane. 
We still must accommodate the growth they said we will have. We are trying to create a 
plan on where in the city is the best area for a suburbanized growth that meets their 
density requirement. We came up with these locations based on property owners, 
available property and their land. All locations come up to Maple Plain and could utilize 
city sewer. Met council says you must allocate a certain amount of land for affordable 
housing in high density.  They allocated 54 units to the City Independence. When 
discussed, the most logical location for this would be up against Delano with the grocery 
stores, jobs, medical, pharmacy, etc. Met council won’t give us credit that is outside of 
the urban service area or outside of their sewer area. It won’t count. We had to move it 
back. It doesn’t have to go on there if other property made more sense. We have to have a 



 

place holder 54 affordable housing units. It is across from an apartment complex, church 
and park.  
Grotting – You mentioned you have had pressure from existing landowners for high 
density 
Kaltsas- pressure from landowners that would like to develop their land.  
Johnson – this landowner has come in with plans to develop 2 or 3 different times.  

 
Kaltsas – the brown area was significantly pulled back from our 2030 plan. We just 
included properties with enough acreage that could do this. We lowered the density from 
a minimum of 4.7 units/acre back to a minimum of 3.5 units/acre.  We are forced to hit 
3.0 units per acre. Both yellow properties are largely being driven by the property 
owners. Met council doesn’t give credit for the max number, just the lowest number. 
Those areas would be developed as suburban density development at a minimum of 2.7 
units/acre and maximum of 2.7 units/acre. The Met council only recognizes the minimum 
and gives no credit for going over the minimum.  Our system statement says we can only 
grow by 300 households over the next 20 years.  That was a departure from our 2030 
forecast which they gave us in 2005-2006 that said we would grow by 593 units.  We 
asked if you could leave 2030 alone.  They said no.  We asked to have a flexible MUSA 
within the orange, brown and yellow.  City has the ability to stipulate where those 300 
units go.  We were able to get a flexible MUSA.  Met council would like to build our 
own sewer station not connecting to another city sewer system. Properties north of Maple 
Plain would connect to the Maple Plain sewer system.  When Budd Street was re-done, 
we paid to oversize of the pipe so we could connect.  Regional Lift station (LS63) is 
located on Willow and Poplar. Another lift station on East side of Hilltop. Suggesting the 
system accommodate a much larger growth area in the future. Future land use map shows 
blue line is separating Rural Residential and long-term AG. Dark green is AG preserve 
and light green is AG. 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 23-0919-03 – Adopt the 2040 Comprehensive Plan.  

 
Motion by Johnson, seconded by Spencer to adopt the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 
Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. 
None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 
11. Approve Change in Fire Department Service Area Boundaries. 

 
a. Approve Letter to the City of Delano Notifying of City’s Intent to Not Renew the 

Contract for Fire Service. 
Kaltsas – we would not be renewing our annual contract with Delano to provide services 
to the western side of Independence. We would be utilizing MP fire and West Suburban 
to pick up those locations. In order to do that, we need to notify Delano before Oct 1st. 
We will publish a new map for both fire depts. The fire commission from MP approved, 
West Suburban approved it.  

 
Motion by Johnson, seconded by Spencer to approve letter to City of Delano. Ayes: 
Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. 
McCoy.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 3-0 

 



 

12. Consider Nomination of Minnehaha Creek Watershed District Representative, Sherry White. 
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 23-0919-04 – Considering Appointment to the Board of 
Managers of the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District.  

Johnson – Supreme court hearing saying that the city needs to be the nominee. I 
nominated Sherry a couple times in the past. She is chair of the watershed district. She 
asked if the city would endorse her as a nominee again. Her husband used to be mayor of 
Orono. I would appreciate the city's support. 

 
Motion by McCoy, seconded by Johnson considering appointment to the board of 
managers of the Minnehaha Creek Watershed District. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, 
Spencer, and Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. Abstain. None.  MOTION 
DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 

 
 
13. Set Date and Time for New Neighborhood Ribbon Cutting; BridgeVine and Koch Farm 

Sanctuary. 
October 3rd before the meeting – 5:30 tentatively. 

 
 

14. Open/Misc. 
 
Collin Brown – 5315 Sunset Lane on behalf of the Snowmobile association with the county 
regarding Turner Rd. I've been speaking with Bryant Johnson. The developments request is to 
use Turner Rd and not pull into development until after power line. Asking council to support us 
to continue using Turner Rd Easement. Trail is still being used with four-wheelers.   
 

 
15. Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Spencer, seconded by Grotting to adjourn the City Council Meeting at    
8:34pm. Ayes: Johnson, McCoy, Spencer, Grotting. Nays: None. Absent: Betts. 
Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 4-0 
 

 
 
 



 Page 1 

 

City of Independence 
Recycling Services Contract Award 

 
To: City Council  

From: Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

Meeting Date: October 3, 2023 

 
Discussion: 
The City’s current citywide recycling services contract is set to end on December 31, 2023. The 
City issued a request for proposals (RFP) to solicit new recycling services proposals.  The City 
received three proposals for recycling services.  The City currently contracts with Republic 
Services.  The City has an estimated 1,394 households utilizing recycling services. All proposals 
submitted were based on single-sort recycling picked up every other week consistent with the 
current program. The City received the following proposals: 

       Cost per household/month 

 Republic Services:    $5.50 (existing cart) 

 Waste Management of Minnesota, Inc.: $6.38 (new cart), $5.80 (used cart) 

 Curbside Waste, Inc.:   $15.00 

 

The City asked for proposals to provide pricing for a three (3) year contract.  Republic noted that 
they would consider a three-year contract with an annual increase of 5%.  Waste Management is 
open to a three- or five-year contract and noted that the annual increase would be between 3-5%.  
Curbside did not provide any additional information relating to a contract length or annual 
increase.  Staff has developed a quick analysis of the three proposals as follows:   

 

Note that Waste Management could not commit to maintaining the current pickup day of 
Friday’s.  This would be something that would need to be further discussed if the City were to 
move forward. 
 



 Page 2 

 

Council Direction: 
Based on City Council direction, the City Attorney would prepare a contract and work with the 
company awarded to finalize and execute.  The City Council is being asked to consider award of 
a Citywide Recycling Contract commencing on January 1, 2024, and running for three (3) years. 
 
City Council can adopt RESOLUTION 23-1003-01 awarding the citywide recycling contract to 
Republic Service and direct staff to prepare and execute the corresponding contract.   
 
 
Attachments:   RESOLUTION 23-1003-01 
   Respective Proposals 
    
 



 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

RESOLUTION OF THE  
CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 

HENNEPIN COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 23-1003-01 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING THE CITYWIDE RECYLCING CONTRACT  

TO REPUBLIC SERVICES 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Independence, Hennepin County, Minnesota; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Independence utilizes a citywide recycling contractor to provide 

recycling services to the residents of the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a request for proposals for recycling services so that it 
can establish a new contract; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the proposals and determined that Republic 

Services can provide the highest level of service for the best value to the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, has considered entering into an Agreement with Republic 

Services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, has determined that it is in the best interests of the City of 

Independence that said Agreement be entered into by the Mayor and City Administrator 
following the review and approval of the City Attorney. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Independence as 

follows: 
 
1. That the Mayor and City Administrator are hereby authorized to execute for and on 

behalf of the City of Independence, the aforesaid Agreement.  
 

2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and approval. 
 

This resolution was adopted by the City Council of the City of Independence on 
this 17th day of October 2023, by a vote of  ayes and  nays. 

 
 

Marvin Johnson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

    
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 




